
 
 
 

 
  30 August 2011 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL 
will meet on 

Wednesday, 7 September 2011 
beginning at 

6:30 pm 
in 

Committee Room, Civic Offices, Leigh Road, Eastleigh 

 
TO: Councillor Mrs Pamela Holden-Brown (Chairman) 
 Councillor Mrs Tonia Craig (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Malcolm Cross Councillor Glynn Davies-Dear 
Councillor Judith Grajewski BSc 
MRPharmS 

Councillor Trevor Mignot 

Councillor Tony Noyce Councillor Jane O'Sullivan BEd 
Councillor Mrs Maureen A Sollitt Councillor Mrs Jane Welsh 
Councillor Joe Wright  

 
CC: Councillor David Airey, Cabinet Member for Transport and Streetscene  

Councillor Louise Bloom BA (Hons), Cabinet Member for Environment 
  Councillor Alan Broadhurst, Cabinet Member for Leisure 
  Councillor Cathie Fraser, Cabinet Member for Health 
  Councillor Roger Smith, Cabinet Member for Communities 
  Councillor Anne Winstanley MA (Cantab), Cabinet Member for Housing & 

Customer Service 
   
Staff Contacts: Alex Parmley, Corporate Director 

Tel: 023 8068 8134; e-mail: alex.parmley@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 Julia Roy, Democratic Services Officer 

Tel: 023 8068 8133; e-mail: julia.roy@eastleigh.gov.uk  
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings 
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request. 
 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 

Civic Offices, Leigh Road, 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 
item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 

Services Officer above. 
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public. 



AGENDA 
 

1. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 8)  
  
 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 29 June 2011.  
  
2. Apologies     
 
3. Declarations of Interest      
  
 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 

agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.  
  
4. Chairman's Report     
 
5. Minutes of Community Wellbeing and Environment Scrutiny Panels    (Pages 9 - 

18)  
  
 To note the Minutes of the Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Panel on 2 March and 

the Environment Scrutiny Panel on 24 March 2011, which were received by 
Council on 14 July 2011  

  
6. Response of Cabinet to the Environment Scrutiny Panel's Review of the Glass 

Collection Service    (Pages 19 - 20)  
  
 Extract from Minutes of Cabinet 11 July 2011 attached.  
  
7. Climate Change Strategy 2011- 2020    (Pages 21 - 36) 
 
8. Developing a Private Sector Housing Strategy, based on the 2010 Housing Stock 

Condition Survey results (Powerpoint presentation)     
 
9. Forward Plan    (Pages 37 - 42) 
 
10. Work Programme    (Pages 43 - 44) 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Wednesday, 19 October 2011 at 6:30 pm 

at Committee Room, Civic Offices, Leigh Road, Eastleigh

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Wednesday, 29 June 2011  (6:30 pm – 7:45 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Craig (Vice-Chair in the Chair), Grajewski, Mignot, Mrs Welsh 
and Wright 
 
Also in attendance: Councillors Airey (Cabinet Member for Transport and 
StreetScene) Mrs Fraser Cabinet Member for Health) and R Smith 
(Cabinet Member for Communities) 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs Holden-Brown, 
Davies-Dear, Noyce and O'Sullivan and from Councillors Bloom (Cabinet 
Member for Environment, A Broadhurst (Cabinet Member for Leisure) and 
Winstanley (Cabinet Member for Housing and Customer Service) 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. MINUTES 
 
It was AGREED -  
 
That agreement of the Minutes of the Community Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Panel on 2 March 2011 and the Environment Scrutiny Panel on 24 
March 2011 be deferred, due to there being insufficient members 
present at this meeting who had attended the meetings of the two 
former Panels. 
 
Matters arising from the meeting of the Environment Scrutiny Panel 
meeting on 24 March 2011.  
 
Item 1 (Minutes)  
 
• A report from Cllr Tennent regarding the provision of salt bins would 

be provided at the next meeting. 
 
• The Corporate Director (AP) reported that he had been liaising with 

staff at the Environment Agency (EA) concerning the proposed 
closure of its Colden Common offices with a view to sharing office 
space at the Civic Offices.  The EA offices were due to close in the 
near future and members of the Environment Scrutiny Panel had 
been concerned at the resulting loss of a local EA presence.  
Although the offices had not yet closed, it had now been agreed that 
one Area Officer would be located in the Civic Offices initially, but 
no firm decision had been made for the longer term concerning 
other EA staff. 

Agenda Item 1

1



 
Item 5 (Project Integra Action Plan 2011-2016) 
 
• The Democratic Services Officer agreed to circulate details of the 

Project Integra training courses referred to in paragraph 7 to all 
Members. 

 
• The Recycling and Development Manager confirmed that a 

communications exercise was being undertaken to improve the 
Council’s current recycling contamination rate of between 10% and 
12%, as it had previously stood at around 8%.  

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

3. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT 
 
The Chair provided an update on the current situation regarding travellers 
in the Borough. The travellers had now left Ensign Way in Hamble and 
there were none remaining in the Borough.  There were, however, a few 
vehicles left at Ensign Way belonging to the travellers arrested in the 
police operation.  They had moved to Curdridge, just outside the Borough, 
but were moving on from there.  The police were monitoring recreation 
grounds and other locations and the Council was working with private 
landowners. 
 

4. FORWARD PLAN 
 
The Panel considered the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions. 
 
The Chair reminded the Panel that Members’ seminars on the Core 
Strategy had been arranged for 4 July and 4 October 2011. 
 

5. WORK PROGRAMME 
 
The Panel considered its work programme for the year 2011/12.  The work 
programmes of the previous Environment and Community Wellbeing 
Scrutiny Panels as they were left at the last meetings, and the list of 
Cabinet portfolios, were provided for information.    
 
The Chair advised that the new Panel encompassed a wide remit and 
referred Panel members to the Cabinet portfolios provided in Appendix (b).  
The Panel covered the following portfolios: Communities, Transport and 
StreetScene, Leisure, Environment, Housing and Customer Service and 
Health.  Panel members and Cabinet portfolio leads were invited to 
suggest topics for future scrutiny and Members noted that a number of 
topics contained in the respective portfolios might be of interest to the 
Panel in the future. 

2



 
On air quality, Diccon Bright, Area Co-ordinator, advised that there were 
currently four Air Quality Management Areas in the Borough.  A report was 
to be considered by Cabinet on 11 July which would seek approval for the 
implementation and monitoring of five year action plans to improve these 
areas.  The plans would then be submitted to DEFRA.  This Panel could 
consider looking at the plans once they were in place, although Local Area 
Committees would also have a large role in their monitoring. 
 
Councillor Airey, Cabinet Member for Transport and StreetScene, firstly 
advised that Concessionary Fares, listed on the Transport and 
StreetScene portolio, was no longer applicable, as this function was now 
carried out by the County Council.  Regarding the Eastleigh Car Club, he 
reported that the scheme was part of the Civic Offices Travel Plan and a 
paper was to be considered by Cabinet on 11 July which considered the 
possibility of expanding the scheme.  Good use was being made of the 
current vehicles, but there was the potential for more use, particularly by 
staff at the Town Centre Office and The Point, and also by the public in the 
evening.   
 
Appendix (a) contained the work programmes of the former Environment 
and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Panels, as they were left at the last 
meetings of the Panels.  Members considered the annual items on both 
programmes and Councillor Airey advised that the Public Transport 
Annual Report and the Local Bus Services Services Review formed one 
item.  In addition, the results of the bus tender process would be 
completed at the end of October.   It was agreed that, from the 
Environment Scrutiny Panel, the Public Transport Annual Report, which 
included the Local Bus Services Review, the Climate Change Action Plan 
and the Environmental Health Review should be retained by the new 
Panel.  The Council had a statutory duty to consider Crime and Disorder 
on an annual basis, and this had previously been performed by the 
Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Panel.  This Panel was now taking over the 
responsibility, and the Chairman, Councillor Mrs Holden-Brown, had 
spoken to the Community Safety Manager and agreed that he would 
attend the Panel meeting on 19 October 2011.  Mental Wellbeing would 
also be monitored by this Panel. 
 
With regard to the Panel’s work programme, the Housing Stock Condition 
Survey results had been deferred from the last meeting of the Environment 
Scrutiny Panel and would be brought to the 7 September meeting of this 
Panel, together with the draft of the revised Climate Change Strategy.  As 
previously confirmed, Crime and Disorder, together with a Youth Provision 
update, would be brought to the 19 October meeting.  The Public 
Transport Annual Report, including attendance by local transport service 
operators, would form the 30 November meeting, and an Environmental 
Health update would be provided at the 29 February meeting. 
 
Councillor Wright referred to the Scrutiny Review, which had been carried 
out in 2007 by a member-led working group, with the objective of 

3



producing an improvement plan for the scrutiny process.  The Review had 
followed the implementation of the Local Government Act 2000, which had 
set out the arrangements whereby local authorities had been required to 
establish an Executive and an Overview and Scrutiny function.  A number 
of recommendations had resulted from the Review, some of which had 
been implemented, such as the establishing of the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee.  However, Councillor Wright considered that 
some of the recommendations had not been implemented and that there 
was a case for the Panel to set up a sub-group to revisit the Scrutiny 
Review. 
 
The Chair asked that Councillor Wright e-mail his suggestions for the remit 
of the proposed sub-group to the Scrutiny Panel Chairs and Vice-Chairs, 
Cabinet members, the Corporate Director (AP) and the Democratic 
Services Officer (JR) for consideration.  
 

6. CONSULTATION ON OLDER PEOPLE'S MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Lead Officer for Health 
concerning proposed changes to mental health services in South West 
Hampshire and Southampton.   
 
The Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust was proposing changes to 
inpatient mental health services for older people in south-west Hampshire 
and Southampton and was consulting on these proposals between 9 May 
and 17 June 2011.  The report detailed the main aspects of the proposals 
and the anticipated impact on Eastleigh residents and set out a response 
to the consultation. 
 
At its meeting on 2 March 2011, the Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Panel 
had received a presentation from representatives of the Hampshire 
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust on older people’s mental health 
services and had asked that Cabinet submit a request to the NHS/PCT 
that savings made from the closure of mental health beds be put back into 
local communities to support patients and carers.  Cabinet agreed that this 
would be revisited during the consultation and it was included in the 
consultation response. 
 
Cabinet was also advised that the consultation response had been 
amended slightly following discussions with the Chairman of the Policy 
and Performance Scrutiny Panel and details of the changes were 
provided.  Cabinet also made amendments to the response and the final 
response was included as an appendix on the agenda for this meeting. 
 
An appendix to the report contained a table showing the mileage and 
admission details for Linden and Willow Wards in the Tom Rudd Unit at 
Moorgreen Hospital, produced by the Trust.  Members noted that some of 
the figures in the table were inaccurate.  
 

4



The Lead Officer for Health reported that consultation responses were 
currently being considered and a decision would be made at the end of 
July.  The proposals were also being reviewed by the County Council and 
Southampton City Council Overview and Scrutiny Committees.  There 
were two main issues which needed to be taken forward:  
 
• Transport costs – it was suggested that the Trust put some 

resources into supporting the transport costs of patients and carers 
 
• The broader issue of monitoring the implementation of the changes. 
 
It was suggested that the Panel set up a liaison group to look at the rolling 
out of the changes and Panel members were invited to join the group, 
which would also include the Cabinet Member for Health.  The Chairman 
of this Panel, Councillor Mrs Holden-Brown, had already indicated that she 
would like to join the group. 
 
It was AGREED -  
 
That a liaison group, comprising Councillors Mrs Holden-Brown, 
Craig, Mignot and Mrs Welsh, and the Cabinet Member for Health, be 
set up to monitor the implementation of the proposed changes to 
inpatient mental health services for older people in South West 
Hampshire and Southampton.   
 

7. REVIEW OF THE GLASS COLLECTION SERVICE 
 
The Panel considered the report of the Environment Scrutiny Panel’s Task 
and Finish Group which had reviewed the Council’s glass collection 
service. 
 
The Task and Finish Group, consisting of Councillors Mrs Holden-Brown, 
G Smith and Day, had been set up by the Environment Scrutiny Panel in 
February 2011 to investigate whether any improvements could be made to 
the service.  The following Terms of Reference had been drawn up: 
 
(a) To consider the glass collection service in Eastleigh Borough; 
 
(b) To investigate the amount of glass being collected; 
 
(c) To consider the guidelines provided to residents concerning the 

service; and 
 
(d) To consider whether any improvements can be made to (a) the 

amount of glass being collected and (b) communications regarding the 
service, with a view to providing the best possible service. 

 
The group’s Work Plan had included liaison with and consideration of 
information provided by the Recycling and Development Manager, 

5



consideration of responses to a questionnaire sent to neighbouring 
councils and a visit to the Otterbourne Waste Transfer Station.  
 
The overall view of the glass collection service was that it was performing 
at a high level, but that some improvements could be made, particularly to 
communications, in order to try and increase collection figures further.  
The report drew a number of other conclusions, including: 
 
• An article being placed in the Borough News providing residents 

with more information about the glass collection service; 
• Revisiting the calendar of collection dates; 
• Using the Council’s website to explain what happens to recycled 

products; 
• Programming glass collection days on the same day as recycling 

collections; 
• Rebranding bottle banks and eurobins; 
• Providing additional glass bins at locations such as recreation 

grounds; and 
• Encouraging Members to visit the Materials Recycling Facility at 

Alton and the Waste Transfer Station at Otterbourne. 
 
Panel members welcomed the recommendations in the report concerning 
increased communication with residents, particularly with regard to 
providing information on what happened to glass after collection and 
reviewing the calendar of collection dates, which residents often found 
difficult to understand. 
 
It was AGREED - 
 
That the following be RECOMMENDED to Cabinet: 
 
(1) The Council’s glass collection service is performing at a high 
 level but, in order to try and increase collection figures further, 
 the following improvements to communications to residents 
 should be made: 
 

(a) An article should be placed in the Borough News informing 
residents of the following: 

 
(i) More than one glass collection box may be obtained; 
(ii) What happens to glass once it has been collected 

from the kerbside; and 
(iii) Which types of glass should, and should not, be 

placed in the collection box;  
 

(b) The calendar of collection dates should be revisited, with a 
view to making it more user-friendly; and 

 

6



(c) Investigation should be undertaken into the possibility of 
using the Council’s website to explain to residents where 
recycled products go and how they are used. 

 
(2) Where practical and cost effective, glass collection days 
 should be programmed to fall on the same day as other 
 recyclable waste is collected; 
 
(3) A rebranding exercise should be undertaken, using a different 
 colour to distinguish glass collection eurobins and bottle 
 banks for mixed glass;  
  
(4) An increased number of dedicated glass bins should be 
 provided at locations such as recreation grounds and 
 shopping centres, subject to the provision of appropriate 
 funding from either the Borough or Parish Council; and  
 
(5) All Members should be encouraged to visit the Materials 
 Recycling Facility at Alton, and the Waste Transfer Station at 
 Otterbourne when the opportunity arises. 
 
 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Wednesday, 2 March 2011  (6:34 pm – 7:54 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Craig (Chair); Councillors Mrs Broadhurst, Cross, Mrs Hughes, 
Ingram, O'Sullivan and Mrs Sollitt 
 
Also in attendance: Councillors Broadhurst, Cabinet Member for Leisure, 
and Mrs Fraser, Cabinet Member for Health 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Grajewski and 
Councillor Smith, Cabinet Member for Communities 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. MINUTES 
 
It was AGREED - 
  
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 8 December 
2010 be confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

3. OLDER PEOPLE'S MENTAL HEALTH - PRE-CONSULTATION 
ENGAGEMENT (EXCLUDING PLANNING ISSUES) 
 
The Chair welcomed to the meeting David Higenbottam, Pamela 
Sorensen, Paul Hopper and Amanda Horsman, of the Hampshire 
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust; Diane Wilson, NHS Hampshire; and 
Dr John Gavin, GP Eastleigh District Lead.  
 
David Higenbottam thanked the Chair for the opportunity to speak to 
Members about the concerns of older people’s mental health. He advised 
that a further two seminars were to be held at West End Parish Hall on 4 
March 2011. 
 
Paul Hopper and Amanda Horsman gave a presentation to Members, 
explaining the history and details of their proposal, their current service 
model, engagement to date and the next steps. 
 
The majority of mental health disorders, such as depression and anxiety 
disorders, developed in hospital. Dementia was a common problem with 1 

Agenda Item 5

9



in 4 people over the age of 80 diagnosed with the condition. Effective 
diagnosis and early intervention of improved support for people in crisis 
ensured a shorter stay in hospital. Improving care pathways and listening 
to patients who wanted treatment at home or were better supported where 
they lived, had led to an average of 70 in-patient beds remaining empty in 
the last six months which was not a good use of resources. 
 
An example of Andover’s ‘community model of care’ was presented to 
Members. It explained that a mental health ward had been closed. Their 
Community Mental Health Team (CMHT) had increased in size and 
capacity, and worked with other agencies and partners to provide care 
jointly within the community. 
 
The Hampshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust and NHS Hampshire 
planned to work together to build upon what had been learnt from the 
Andover model and proposed to take this forward for south Hampshire and 
Southampton with a formal consultation.  
 
The Chair thanked Paul Hopper and Amanda Horsman for their 
presentation and opened the meeting for discussion. 
 
A number of questions and comments were raised during the course of 
discussion including: 
 
Help for low income people that had to travel further afield to 
hospitals – The CMHT would initially go to a patients home. Further visits 
may be required after diagnosis but memory clinics and other excellent 
services may be local. There had been a reduction in beds over the last 30 
years and it made economic sense to close wards. Unfortunately there 
would always be a travel burden for some. 
 
Lone people being identified for help – Recognition of the problem was 
difficult but part of the solution was to make people aware. The CMHT 
stated that they had a duty to make assessments where concern was 
brought to their attention. 
 
Data protection where concern had been raised – Patient 
confidentiality was mandatory, however if concern was raised there were 
mechanisms in place that would trigger a doctor/patient consultation. 
 
Newtown House in Eastleigh – The re-vamped building had been 
brought to people’s attention and latest figures had shown that there had 
been increases in footfall through the doors seeking mental health support. 
Dr Gavin agreed that this was a good service however the southern 
parishes were still vulnerable. He went on to say that he felt that the 
Hampshire Partnership Trust could be better at liaising with local GP’s as 
he and other colleagues were not aware of their proposals. He was very 
concerned that the ‘savings’ from beds would be vied into a central budget 
and urged the Council to put mechanisms in place to secure these savings 
and ensure they were invested back into the local community. 

10



 
Facilities in Eastleigh taken away – There were two in-patient units, one 
in Millbrook, Southampton and another in Winchester, both in close 
proximity to acute hospitals. These units were better equipped, more 
secure and a better environment for patients. 
 
Newtown House visit - Amanda Horsman advised that she would be 
more than happy to show Members around Newtown House and the 
services offered. 
 
Health care provision – Dr Gavin advised that 99% of people did not get 
treatment in hospital. He did sympathise with those that had to make 
journeys but thought the Council should concentrate on care in the 
community. As the Borough did not have an acute hospital in the area the 
Council should take the opportunity to develop a community effective 
service. 
 
Councillor Cathie Fraser, Cabinet Member for Health, advised that she 
was totally committed to seeing services built in the community; she had 
particular concerns for the southern parishes and would be reporting back 
to Hampshire County Council, with the comments from the meeting. 
 
The Chair thanked everyone for their contribution; it had been a very 
useful and thought provoking meeting. 
  
It was AGREED -     
 
That it be RECOMMENDED to Cabinet that Cabinet submit a request 
to the NHS/PCT that savings made from the closure of mental health 
beds be put back into local communities to support patients and 
carers. 
 

4. FORWARD PLAN 
 
The Chair informed the Panel that this was the last meeting of the 
Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Panel following a report to Council on 
Thursday 24 February 2011 recommending that the Scrutiny Panels be 
reduced from four to two.  The new Scrutiny Panel would combine 
Community Wellbeing with Environment and renamed Policy and 
Performance. The first meeting would be on 29 June 2011. 
 
The Chair went on to thank Members for their support, time and questions 
and wished Councillor June Hughes the very best in her retirement. 
 

5. PROPOSED WORK PROGRAMME - TO AGREE ITEMS FOR FUTURE 
MEETINGS. 
 
This item was not discussed due to the disbandment of the Scrutiny Panel. 
 
M4261 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Thursday, 24 March 2011  (7:00 pm – 8:45 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Holden-Brown (Chairman); Councillors Day, Mignot, Norgate 
and G Smith 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M Hughes and 
Tennent and from Councillor Airey (Cabinet Member for Transport and 
StreetScene) 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. MINUTES 
 
It was AGREED - 
  
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 3 February 2011 
be confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 
On Minute 1 (Minutes of Previous Meeting) the Chairman advised that, as 
Councillor Tennent was unable to attend this meeting, he would report 
back on salt bins at the next meeting of the Panel. 
 
On Minute 4 (Climate Change Action Plan Update) the Chairman reported 
that she had written to the Cabinet Member for Environment as agreed, 
and that the Cabinet Member’s response had been e-mailed to all 
members of the Panel. 
 
On Minute 8 (Work Programme) the Corporate Director (AP) reported that 
the Environment Agency was considering his proposal.  In addition, a 
project group was looking at possible agencies, including the Environment 
Agency, to share space in the Civic Offices when the Council moved to the 
Town Centre.  
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

3. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT 
 
The Chairman had attended a Project Integra Scrutiny meeting on the 
morning of this meeting, at which the Chief Executive of Project Integra 
had reported on the following issues:-  (a) amended Controlled Waste 
Regulations were coming into force on 1 April 2011; (b) DEFRA had 

13



announced that a review of waste policies was to be undertaken and a 
future strategy on waste produced; and (c) the Materials Marketing Group 
was working on a business case for MRFs to adapt for the collection of 
aluminium foil. 
 
The date for the Panel’s visit to the Alton MRF had changed from 4 March 
to 31 March.  Councillors Holden-Brown, Day and Welsh were to take part. 
 
The Panel’s Task and Finish Group had started work on its investigation of 
glass collection.  As part of this investigation a visit would take place to the 
Otterbourne recovery facility in early April, to which all Panel members 
would be invited. 
 

4. ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH REVIEW 
 
The Environmental Health Manager and the Principal Environmental 
Health Officer (Community) gave a presentation on the current structure 
and work of the Environmental Health team. 
 
Almost four full-time equivalent staff would have been lost from the team 
by 1 April 2011, but changes to the pest control service allowed the current 
team a more flexible, cost-effective use of resources.  However, long-term 
sickness had been an issue during the current year. 
 
An update on the following areas of work was provided: 
 
• ICT – the new back office (Acolaid) went live on 22 February 2011, 

combined with the introduction of EDRM.  A pilot of mobile working 
was to begin by the end of the year, covering three aspects of 
Environmental Health.  

 
• Land Contamination – The Fair Oak landfill study, looking for 

methane, was underway and the contaminated land strategy was 
being reviewed. 

 
• Air Quality – Two Air Quality Management Areas had been 

extended (Hamble and M3) and a new one made in Botley. 
 
• Public Health and Nuisance – the out of hours noise service, 

delivered by Southampton City Council, had ceased on 31 
December 2010, but was being kept under review. 

 
• Private Sector Housing – the private sector house condition survey 

had been carried out, and would be used to produce the Private 
Sector Housing Strategy. 

 
• Financial Assistance – Over 165 Occupational Therapy referrals for 

Disabled Facilities Grant had been received in 2010/11. 
 

14



• Animal Welfare – the need for further Dog Control Orders was being 
reviewed.  The Tethered Horses Policy was introduced in 2010/11 
and four horses had been seized. 

 
• Food Hygiene – 95% of food hygiene inspections would be 

achieved in 2010/11.  Samples of butchers and contact surfaces 
were also being undertaken this year. 

 
• Health and Safety – The Primary Authority relationship with B&Q 

was working well and other opportunities were being explored. 
 
• Pest Control – major work was being carried out to make the 

service more cost effective and also to promote awareness of the 
service. 

 
• Administration – changes were imminent due to some work moving 

to the customer services centre. 
 
• Campaigns and Projects – Think Safe 2011 had been very 

successful and the popular Dog Fun Day was to take place on 17 
September. 

 
• Future Challenges – these included changes in the public health 

agenda and the regulatory landscape, together with budgetary 
constraints. 

 
Panel members had a number of queries on various issues, including: 
 
• Monitoring of the condition of housing association properties – it 

was advised that registered social landlords were responsible for 
the monitoring of their properties, but that the Council would take 
action if issues were not dealt with. 

 
• Hygiene inspections of mobile burger and ice cream vans – it was 

confirmed that these were inspected, but not sampled, this year.  
Although there were risks with burger vans, food was cooked 
quickly.  Butchers’ shops, however, provided the opportunity for 
cross-contamination between cooked and uncooked food. 

 
• Number of stray dogs - it was confirmed that only a few stray dogs 

had been found and they had been returned to their owners.  The 
Panel agreed that the Dog Fun Day was a good, educational event.   

 
• Air quality monitoring results – the Environmental Health Manager 

confirmed that he would investigate and report back regarding 
sending the results back to Members. 

 
The Panel was also concerned that any problems arising from staff being 
on long-term sick leave should be notified to the Panel.  The 

15



Environmental Health Manager thanked the Panel and confirmed that, 
although there was pressure on the team, plans were in place to maintain 
delivery of the service.  
 
The Panel thanked the Environmental Health Manager and the Principal 
Environmental Health Officer (Community) for a very informative 
presentation and asked that thanks also be passed to the Environmental 
Health team. 
 

5. PROJECT INTEGRA: ACTION PLAN 2011-2016 
 
The Recycling and Development Manager introduced a report concerning 
the Project Integra Action Plan 2011-2016 and the Partner Implementation 
Plan. 
 
Project Integra was the adopted brand name for the waste management 
partnership for Hampshire, which comprised all eleven District Councils, 
the two Unitary Authorities, Hampshire County Council and Hampshire 
Waste Services (a subsidiary of Veolia), the waste disposal contractor.     
 
The Action Plan, attached as Appendix 1 to the report, was the 
mechanism by which the Project Integra Board received its mandate to 
work on behalf of the partnership.   
 
The Plan included a Strategic Overview setting out the political, economic, 
social and environmental context within which the partnership would be 
working over the next five years.  The following five strategic outcomes 
emerged from this overview: 
 
• Sustainable and ethical recycling 
• Eliminating landfill 
• Commercial materials management 
• Efficiencies/value for money 
• Leadership and influence. 
 
These outcomes had been used to develop the key work streams for the 
coming year.  These work streams were largely initiatives carried on from 
2010/11, in anticipation of revisions to the Action Plan as a result of the 
review of Project Intregra’s future role, structure and resourcing.  The 
Head of Direct Services had produced a briefing note on the review which 
had recently been distributed to Panel members and this would be 
discussed after this report.    
 
Each partner was required both to approve the Action Plan, and to 
produce a partner implementation plan detailing highlights from the 
previous year and planned actions supporting the partnership key 
objectives.  Eastleigh’s partner implementation plan was contained in 
Appendix 2 to the report, and the main areas for Eastleigh included 
maximising recycling, reducing contamination and minimising residual 
waste.  Work was taking place with Project Integra regarding 

16



contamination and the design of information leaflets.  To improve 
communications to residents on the use of the communal recycling 
systems in flats, work was also taking place with housing associations and 
managing agents. 
 
The Recycling and Development Manager also referred to the Project 
Integra training programme for Members and officers, which comprised 
seven highly-rated key modules.  Details of the programme would be 
circulated to Panel members for consideration.  Places cost £25 and were 
good value for money.   
 
During the discussion of the report, Panel members raised a number of 
issues, including: 
 
• The need to work closely with Planning Officers regarding the 

provision of sufficient space for bin storage in flatted developments.  
It was advised that new bins, for easier use, were also being 
investigated. 

 
• Recycling of plastics.  It was still uncertain which plastics could, and 

could not, be recycled and consequently contamination occurred 
from those plastics not able to be recycled.  The Recycling and 
Development Manager advised that new in-cab technology 
implemented during 2011/12 would provide real-time information 
from crews on participation and recycling contamination problems, 
after which staff could meet residents and talk through these issues.   

 
The Corporate Director (AP) then introduced the briefing note from the 
Head of Direct Services on the Project Integra Review, which contained 
the Council’s draft response to questions agreed by the Project Integra 
Strategic Board regarding the future of Project Integra and the structure of 
the partnership.  The collation of responses from partners would provide a 
steer for the partnership. 
 
It was AGREED - 
 
(1) That it be RECOMMENDED to Cabinet that (a) the Project 

Integra Action Plan 2011-2016; (b) the Partner Implementation 
Plan; and (c) the draft response to the Project Integra Review 
be approved. 

 
(NOTE: One member of the public spoke with regard to this item.) 
 

6. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK SUSTAINABILITY APPRAISAL 
SCOPING REPORT 
 
The Panel considered a report of the Head of Regeneration and Planning 
Policy which set out the Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic 
Environmental Assessment process and how it was to be undertaken for 
Eastleigh Borough’s Local Development Framework (LDF). 

17



 
The first stage of the assessment process was to produce a Scoping 
Report, and the Panel had approved the draft version of this for 
consultation at its meeting on 13 January 2011.  The six week consultation 
process had now been completed and it was proposed that the Scoping 
Report be updated to reflect the comments received as set out in 
Appendices 1 and 2. 
 
Six representations had been received, most of which had been 
incorporated into the Scoping Report, while some comments needed 
further discussion or investigation.  Where comments had not been 
included, for example Natural England’s suggestion that indicators for 
landscape enhancement be produced, but there was insufficient data 
available to enable monitoring, it was confirmed that an annual review took 
place and, should information become available, it would be included later. 
 
It was AGREED - 
 
(1) That the Eastleigh Borough Sustainability Appraisal Scoping 

Report, as proposed to be amended, as set out at 
http://intranet/pdf/ppdsaseascoping2010pdf, be noted; 

 
(2) That the amended sustainability appraisal framework, as 

proposed to be amended, as set out in Appendix 2, be noted. 
 

7. FORWARD PLAN 
 
The Panel considered the Forward Plan of Key Decisions. 
 
It was AGREED - 
  
That no items from the Forward Plan be added to the Work 
Programme. 
 

8. WORK PROGRAMME 
 
The Chairman advised that this was the last meeting of the Panel in its 
present form, as it was to be replaced by the Policy and Performance 
Scrutiny Panel, which would have many issues to consider as it would also 
include the Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Panel. The Chairman thanked 
Members for taking part in the Panel over the years, and Panel members 
also thanked her for her work as Chairman. 
 
M4271 
 
 

18



EXTRACT FROM MINUTES OF MEETING OF CABINET, 11 JULY 2011 
 
 
Issue 
 
To consider recommendations from the Policy and Performance Scrutiny 
Panel (Paper 4). 
 
Considerations 
 
At its meeting on 29 June the Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel 
considered the report of the Environment Scrutiny Panel’s Task and Finish 
Group which had reviewed the Council’s glass collection service. 
 
The Task and Finish Group, consisting of Councillors Mrs Holden-Brown, G 
Smith and Day, had been set up by the Environment Scrutiny Panel in 
February 2011 to investigate whether any improvements could be made to the 
service.  The Panel members welcomed the report and made the following 
recommendations to Cabinet: 
 
(1) The Council’s glass collection service is performing at a high level but, 

in order to try and increase collection figures further, the following 
improvements to communications to residents should be made: 

 
(a) An article should be placed in the Borough News informing 

residents of the following: 
 

(i) More than one glass collection box may be obtained; 
(ii) What happens to glass once it has been collected from the 

kerbside; and 
(iii) Which types of glass should, and should not, be placed in the 

collection box;  
 

(b) The calendar of collection dates should be revisited, with a view to 
making it more user-friendly; and 

 
(c) Investigation should be undertaken into the possibility of using the 

Council’s website to explain to residents where recycled products 
go and how they are used. 

 
(2) Where practical and cost effective, glass collection days should be 

programmed to fall on the same day as other recyclable waste is 
collected; 

 
(3) A rebranding exercise should be undertaken, using a different colour to 

distinguish glass collection eurobins and bottle banks for mixed glass;  
 
(4) An increased number of dedicated glass bins should be provided at 

locations such as recreation grounds and shopping centres, subject to 

Agenda Item 6

19



the provision of appropriate funding from either the Borough or Parish 
Council; and  

 
(5) All Members should be encouraged to visit the Materials Recycling 

Facility at Alton, and the Waste Transfer Station at Otterbourne when 
the opportunity arises. 

 
At the meeting the Cabinet Member for Environment expressed her general 
support for the recommendations made and gave the following updates: 
 

• The calendar of collections dates referred to in 
recommendation (1) (b) was already being reviewed and the 
whole calendar would be changed; 

• In relation to recommendation (2) the rounds were being 
revised but it probably would not be practical to collect glass at 
the same time as other waste; 

• The rebranding exercise referred to in recommendation (3) 
would be expensive but changes could be considered as the 
bins needed to be replaced; 

• Members should be encouraged to visit the Materials 
Recycling Facility at Alton and the Waste Transfer Station at 
Otterbourne and Project Integra regularly organised tours. 

 
It was felt that it would be preferable for task and finish groups to involve the 
relevant Cabinet Member and for any recommendations to expressly state 
whether they have the support of the relevant Cabinet Member.  
 
RESOLVED -  
 
(1) That the updates given by the Cabinet Member for Environment 

be noted; 
 
(2) That the recommendations made by the Policy and Performance 

Scrutiny Panel be noted; and  
 
(3) That the members of the Task and Finish Group be thanked for 

their efforts on this piece of work.  
 

20



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\3\4\5\ai00028543\$hz0vyajc.doc  

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL 

7th September 2011 

CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY 2011-2020 

Report of the Sustainability Policy Coordinator 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that: 
 
(1) The Panel considers the draft Climate Change Strategy 2011-2020, in particular 

the objectives and, subject to any amendments, recommends its approval to 
Cabinet; and 

 

(2) A detailed delivery and costed action plan be brought to the Panel in January 
2012 with an annual monitoring report being brought each year thereafter. 

 

Summary 
 
Climate change is one of the greatest challenges that we face as a society and it will affect 
us all.  There are environmental, social and economic challenges that must be faced as 
well as opportunities which will be created.  Energy security is a key issue and improving 
energy efficiency and securing low carbon, sustainable energy supplies will provide long 
term benefits for the Council and wider community. 

The Council has already achieved a lot and the draft Climate Change Strategy 2011-2020 
sets out our objectives to enable us to continue to tackle these issues, meet the UK legally 
binding emissions reduction targets and create a sustainable Borough where residents 
have a high quality of life.  

Statutory Powers 
 
Local Government Act 2000 

 

Introduction 

1. There is now broad agreement that the earth’s climate is changing as a result 
of human activity and the increased emissions of greenhouse gases into the 
atmosphere as a result of our activities.  In addition supplies of fossil fuels are 
declining and to continue to provide for our energy needs, alternative 
renewable sources of energy need to be found. 

Agenda Item 7

21



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\3\4\5\ai00028543\$hz0vyajc.doc  

2. Climate change and energy security are key issues for Eastleigh and tackling 
climate change is a key corporate priority for the Council.  Improving energy 
efficiency and securing low carbon energy supplies will present great 
challenges and opportunities to us and will allow us to create a more 
sustainable Borough, improve quality of life for our residents, help us create 
thriving sustainable economy and help make the Borough more resilient to 
inevitable climate change. 

Climate Change Strategy 2011-2020 

3. The Council has had an adopted Climate Change Strategy since 2003 and by 
July 2012 will have reduced carbon emissions from its own operation activities 
by 10%.  Through this strategy we have also completed a number of other 
projects and activities, such as school travel plans, flexible working for staff, 
installing water saving devices, all with the aim of reducing carbon emissions 
and adapting to inevitable climate change.   

4. As energy prices rise, reducing our energy consumption makes financial as 
well as environmental sense.  Energy security for the future will have cost 
implications but putting this in place now will be far cheaper than delaying and 
facing the consequences and much higher costs of inaction. 

5. The UK Climate Change Act 2008 sets a legally binding target of at least an 
80% cut in greenhouse gas emissions by 2050 and a reduction of at least 
34% by 2020 (against a 1990 baseline).  Action by local authorities will be 
critical to the achievement of the UK Government’s climate change objectives 
and we are well placed to provide vision and leadership, through getting our 
own house in order and through our own powers and services to support 
action by businesses, individuals and communities. 

6. The draft Climate Change Strategy attached at Appendix 1 is work in progress 
and consultation with Units and teams to develop objectives is still taking 
place.  There are also some gaps where further work is still to be done. We 
have set ourselves an ambitious internal strategic objective to reduce 
greenhouse gas emission from our own operations by 50% by 2020 (based on 
2020 levels).  Our second strategic objective relates to our role in working with 
and supporting the community in reducing their own emissions in line with the 
national target (set out above). 

7. The strategy focus on those key areas and issues that will make a real 
difference to the Council, its key operational activities and the wider 
community.  The document sets out the long-term strategy for action on 
climate change and it is proposed that a delivery plan with detailed costed 
actions will be produced, monitored and reported annually through the Climate 
Change Programme Board, Policy & Performance Scrutiny Panel and 
Cabinet. 

Financial Implications 

8. This report sets out the long term strategy for action on climate change.  
Whilst it is recognised that there will be financial implications, these are not 

22



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\3\4\5\ai00028543\$hz0vyajc.doc  

considered in this strategy.  However, it is recognised that delaying action on 
climate change will cost significantly more than if we start to act now.  

9. A detailed delivery and costed action plan will be produced in consultation 
with Units and teams and will be brought to both the Policy & Performance 
Scrutiny Panel and Cabinet early in 2012.   

Risk Assessment 

10. Any actions and targets set by the Council to meet the objectives of the 
Climate Change Strategy 2011-2020 will undergo individual risk assessments. 
Climate Change has been identified as a risk in the Corporate Risk Register 
and failure to implement an appropriate action plan to meet the Climate 
Change Strategy objectives is in itself a risk. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

11. Equality and Diversity implications have been considered as part of the 
existing Climate Change Strategy.  The Equality and Diversity Risk 
Assessment carried out then has been reviewed.  No amendments were 
required. 

Conclusion 

12. Tackling Climate Change is a key corporate priority for the Council.  This 
Strategy sets out key long term objectives for action on climate change.  
Progress will be monitored through an annual delivery and action plan which 
will be fully costed and worked up in consultation with Units and teams.   

13. Meeting the objectives set out in the Strategy will present many challenges 
and opportunities but will allow us to create a more sustainable Borough, 
improve quality of life for our residents, help us create a thriving sustainable 
economy, help make the Borough more resilient to inevitable climate change 
and allow us to work with others to secure affordable, low carbon energy 
supplies. 

JUDITH BEARD 
Sustainability Policy Coordinator 

Date: 23 August 2011 
Contact Officer: Judith Beard 
Tel No: 023 8068 8085 
e-mail: judith.beard@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 1 
*Report No 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following documents disclose facts or matters on which this report or an 
important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in the 
preparation of this report: 

23



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\3\4\5\ai00028543\$hz0vyajc.doc  

None. 

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN : September 2011 - December 2011 

 
This Forward Plan sets out matters which may be considered by Cabinet in the four month period. It includes items on which a “key 
decision” is likely to be taken, these items are indicated with * 
 
A KEY DECISION IS - An executive decision (whether or not taken by the Cabinet) which is likely to: 
 
(1) result in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which amount to either £50,000 or 20% (whichever is the 

larger) of the gross expenditure budget for the service or general function to which the decision relates; or 
 
(2) be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards within the 

Borough of Eastleigh. 
 
The Plan also includes matters for likely decision relating to the Council’s policy or budget framework. 
 

 ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

DESCRIPTION ANY  
REPRESENTATIONS TO 
(contact officer / Cabinet 

Member) 

 Air Quality and Air Quality 
Management Areas  
 

Cabinet   8 Sep 2011 Monitoring of air pollution throughout 
the Borough has identified several 
areas where this is a statutory 
requirement to declare air quality 
management areas. This is because 
air pollution is above DEFRA’s 
national target. Five year Action 
Plan’s are being prepared to detail 
ways in which the air pollution can 
be improved. These will be 
submitted for consideration for 
approval.  

Mark Beeston, Scientific 
Officer / Councillor Louise 
Bloom 

A
genda Item

 937



 

 

 ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

DESCRIPTION ANY  
REPRESENTATIONS TO 
(contact officer / Cabinet 

Member)* 

2 

 Wessex House Business Plan  
 

Cabinet 
 
Resources 
Scrutiny 
Panel   

8 Sep 2011 
 
20 Sep 2011 

None supplied.  Sandra Giles, Business 
Centre Manager /  
Councillor Keith House 
 
 

* Bursledon Community Centre  
 

Cabinet   8 Sep 2011 Approval of project PID including 
funding. 

Andrew Butler, COMPASS 
Programme Co-ordinator /  
Councillor Keith House 

* CIP Schemes Approvals  
 

Cabinet   8 Sep 2011 Approval of capital projects (CIP) 
including funding. 

Nick Tustian, Corporate 
Director (CFO) /  
Councillor Keith House 

 Annual Report on Treasury 
Management 2010/11  
 

Cabinet 
 
Council   

8 Sep 2011 
 
13 Oct 2011 

None supplied.  Nick Tustian, Corporate 
Director (CFO) /  
Councillor Keith House 

* Corporate Financial Monitoring  
 

Cabinet   8 Sep 2011 None supplied.  Nick Tustian, Corporate 
Director (CFO) /  
Councillor Keith House 

 Budget Guidelines Report  
 

Cabinet   8 Sep 2011 None supplied. Nick Tustian, Corporate 
Director (CFO) /  
Councillor Keith House 

 Complaints Review  
 

Cabinet   8 Sep 2011 None supplied. Phil Wiseman, Customer 
Service Supervisor /  
Councillor Anne 
Winstanley 

* Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   8 Sep 2011 None supplied.  Gerry Overton, Senior 
Valuer / Councillor Keith 
House 

38



 

 

 ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

DESCRIPTION ANY  
REPRESENTATIONS TO 
(contact officer / Cabinet 

Member)* 

3 

 ICT Strategy  
 

Cabinet   10 Oct 2011 None supplied. Jasvir Chohan, Head  of 
Customer Service and ICT 
/ Councillor Anne 
Winstanley 

* CIP Schemes Approvals  
 

Cabinet 
 
Council   

10 Oct 2011 
 
13 Oct 2011 

Approval of capital projects (CIP) 
including funding. 

Nick Tustian, Corporate 
Director (CFO) /  
Councillor Keith House 

* Eastleigh Borough Local Plan - 
draft for consultation  
 

Cabinet 
 
Council   

10 Oct 2011 
 
13 Oct 2011 

To approve for consultation the draft 
Local Plan. 

Tony Wright, Planning 
Policy and Design 
Manager /  
Councillor Keith House 

* Public Art Strategy  
 

Cabinet   10 Oct 2011 To approve the revised Public Art 
Strategy following consultation. 

Joanne Calcutt, Public Art 
Officer /  
Councillor Keith House 

 Climate Change Strategy  
 

Policy and 
Performanc
e Scrutiny 
Panel 
 
Cabinet   

7 Sep 2011 
 
 
 
 
10 Oct 2011 

None supplied. Judith Beard, 
Sustainability Policy Co-
ordinator /  
Councillor Louise Bloom 

 Pest Control  
 

Cabinet   10 Oct 2011 None supplied. Matthew Blythe, 
Environmental Health 
Manager /  
Councillor Louise Bloom 

* Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   10 Oct 2011 None supplied. Gerry Overton, Senior 
Valuer /  
Councillor Keith House 

39



 

 

 ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

DESCRIPTION ANY  
REPRESENTATIONS TO 
(contact officer / Cabinet 

Member)* 

4 

* CIP Schemes Approvals  
 

Cabinet 
 
Council   

3 Nov 2011 
 
15 Dec 2011 

Approval of capital projects (CIP) 
including funding. 

Nick Tustian, Corporate 
Director (CFO) /  
Councillor Keith House 

* Fees and Charges 2012  
 

Resources 
Scrutiny 
Panel 
 
Cabinet   

1 Nov 2011 
 
 
 
3 Nov 2011 

To approve fees and charges for 
Council services.  

Nick Tustian, Corporate 
Director (CFO) /  
Councillor Keith House 

* Quality Places Supplementary 
Planning Document  
 

Cabinet   3 Nov 2011 To approve the revised Quality 
Places Supplementary Planning 
Document following consultation. 

Mark Waller-Gutierrez, 
Urban Designer /  
Councillor Keith House 

* Landscape Character 
Assessment  
 

Cabinet   3 Nov 2011 To approve the revised Landscape 
Character Assessment following 
consultation. 

Julian Davies, Design 
Manager /  
Councillor Keith House 

* Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   3 Nov 2011 None supplied. Gerry Overton, Senior 
Valuer /  
Councillor Keith House 

* CIP Schemes Approvals  
 

Cabinet   1 Dec 2011 Approval of capital projects (CIP) 
including funding. 

Nick Tustian, Corporate 
Director (CFO) /  
Councillor Keith House 

* Corporate Financial Monitoring  
 

Resources 
Scrutiny 
Panel 
 
Cabinet   

1 Nov 2011 
 
 
 
1 Dec 2011 

None supplied.  Nick Tustian, Corporate 
Director (CFO) /  
Councillor Keith House 

40



 

 

 ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

DESCRIPTION ANY  
REPRESENTATIONS TO 
(contact officer / Cabinet 

Member)* 

5 

* Vehicle and Plant Replacement 
Programme 2011/12  
 

Cabinet   1 Dec 2011 None supplied.  Gail Grant, Head of Direct 
Services /  
Councillor Louise Bloom  

 Old Bursledon and Bursledon 
Windmill Conservation Area 
Appraisals – Final Proposals  
 

Bursledon, 
Hamble-le-
Rice and 
Hound 
Local Area 
Committee 
 
Cabinet   

17 Nov 2011 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 Dec 2011 

To approve, following consultation, 
the Conservation Area Appraisals 
for the Old Bursledon and Bursledon 
Windmill areas. 

Tim J S Dyer, Architectural 
Design and Conservation 
Officer /  
Councillor Keith House 

* Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   1 Dec 2011 None supplied.  Gerry Overton, Senior 
Valuer /  
Councillor Keith House 

FOOTNOTES: 
Public Participation will apply to enable representations to be made at the time the decision is to be taken. 
Written reports for public items will be available as part of the agenda papers and are usually available one week prior to 
the meeting. 
 
Contact Officer: Alison Wright – Democratic Services Officer 
Publication Date: 25 August 2011 

41



42

This page is intentionally left blank



POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL 
WORK PROGRAMME 

 
As at 30 August 2011 

  
Standing Items 
 
Scrutiny of the current Forward Plan 
Consideration and updating of the Panel’s Work Programme 
 
 
Annual Items 
 
Climate Change Strategy (September) 
Crime and Disorder (October) 
Public Transport Annual Report (November) 
Environmental Health Update (February) 
 
 

  
Date of Meeting 
 

Item for Consideration Staff /Member Attendance 

Wednesday 7 
September 2011 
 
 

Draft Climate Change Strategy 
 
Developing a Private Sector Housing 
Strategy, based on the 2010 Housing 
Stock Condition Survey results 
(Powerpoint presentation) 
 

J Beard 
 
T Hall 
 

Wednesday 19 
October 2011 
 
 

Youth Provision 
 
Crime and Disorder 
 

Min Partner  
 
P Baldry 
 

Wednesday 30 
November 2011 
 
 

Public Transport Annual Report S Wallbridge/Cllr Airey/ 
Representatives from local 
transport operators 

Wednesday 11 
January 2012 
 
 

? Scrutiny Review (report of Task & 
Finish Group) 

 

Wednesday 29 
February 2012 
 
 

Environmental Health Update T Hall/M Blythe 

Items to be 
timetabled for 
meetings  
 
 

Impact of the Go-Ape development on 
wildlife at Itchen Valley Country Park 
(mid 2012) 

R Hardy 

F:\COMADMIN\WORD\P&PSP\P&PSPWORKPROG.DOC 

Agenda Item 10

43



44

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	5 Minutes of Community Wellbeing and Environment Scrutiny Panels
	Minutes 2

	6 Response of Cabinet to the Environment Scrutiny Panel's Review of the Glass Collection Service
	7 Climate Change Strategy 2011- 2020
	Appendix 1

	9 Forward Plan
	10 Work Programme

